
  

 

Town of Elon  

Planning Board Agenda 

 
 

 

January 18, 2022 

6:00 PM 

Elon Town Hall with Electronic and Call-in Options 

 

Agenda Items 

A. Call to Order   

B. Swearing-in of New Planning Board Member Aiesha Leath  

C. New Business 

i. Approval of Minutes from the November 16, 2021 Planning Board Meeting. 

ii. Review and Recommendation:  Consideration of LDO Text Amendment LDO-2022-02 

Regarding the Decriminalization of Ordinances  

D. Board of Aldermen Updates 

E. Items from Board Members 

F. Motion to Adjourn 

 

 



 

1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Meeting of the 

Elon Planning Board 

 

November 16th, 2021                         Conducted via Zoom and In-Person 

Tuesday, 6:00 p.m.                  Elon, North Carolina 

 
Attendees: Jim Beasley, Clark Bennett, Dianne Gill, and Mark Podolle.  

 

Staff present: Pamela DeSoto and Mary Kathryn Harward 

 

Community Audience: Aiesha Dawn Leath, Karla Leath, and Brad Moore 

 

Item A - Chairman Beasley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Item B – New Business 

 

Item B-i – Approval of Minutes  

Ms. DeSoto presented the board with minutes from October 19th, 2021 for approval.  

• Mr. Podolle made a motion to approve the August 17th minutes, with Mr. Bennett seconding 

the motion, and was approved unanimously by the board. 

 

Item B-ii-- Major Development Plan MDP #2021-03 Submitted by Elon University for pedestrian 

path. 

 

Ms. Desoto presented the board with a PowerPoint containing the details of the proposed 

construction within the Colonnades parking lot on Elon University. The project proposes to create 

a pedestrian walkway that will connect the Colonnades Neighborhood with the Danieley Center. 

The project is currently moving through the TRC process, with the potential for final approval 

once issues are addressed.  

• The project is located on Dalton McMichael Drive, in a recently expanded parking lot.  

• Brad Moore, Elon University Architect and Director of Planning, Design and Construction 

Management provided a statement of intent, summarized: 

o “Elon University is a series of outdoor spaces connected by pedestrian paths. This 

is not the case between Danieley Center and Colonnades Neighborhood. This 

project sets out to convert a portion of the existing Colonnades Parking Lot into a 

pedestrian connection between these two neighborhoods and provide our campus 

community a safer and more enjoyable path to and from the Danieley Center.” 

• The entirety of the project lies on property that is zoned according to Elon’s Land 

Development Ordinance as Public Institutional (PI). According to the LDO, this district is 

intended to accommodate primarily large-scale public, educational, and institutional uses. 

The proposed use constitutes a use by right.  

• This project will result in a reduction in the overall parking county by 95 spaces, which 

stays within the bounds set by Section 5.6.2.2 of Elon’s parking requirement in the LDO.  

 

Staff recommended that the Planning Board consider the application, accept public input during 

the scheduled meeting, and consider a recommendation to the Board of Aldermen on the proposal 

at their earliest convenience. Staff recommends approval of the request. 



 

2 

 

 

After Ms. Desoto’s presentation, board members had a few questions which mainly revolved 

around car access within the designed space, fire access from the Danieley Center, and bike 

accessibility and usage. All questions were addressed by Ms. Desoto and Mr. Moore.  

 

Mr. Bennett made a motion to adopt submitted plans as suggested by staff and Mr. Podolle 

seconded the motion. All Board members were in favor.  

 

Item C – Items from Board Members 

 

Clark Bennett posed questions to Ms. Desoto on the topics of a proposed subdivision on 

Shallowford Church Road and asked for an update on applicants for the position of fire chief that 

will soon be vacant.  

 

Item D – Board of Aldermen Updates 

 

Ms. DeSoto briefly reviewed the Board of Alderman meeting that occurred on November 9th, 

2021.  

 

Item E - Motion to Adjourn 

 

A motion to adjourn was made by Chairman Beasley and seconded by Mr. Bennett. The motion 

was approved by unanimous vote. 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________          ________________________________ 

    Mary Kathryn Harward, Planner                                   Jim Beasley, Planning Board Chair 
         Minutes were completed in                   Minutes were approved on 
   Draft form on November 24th, 2021                       January 18, 2022 



     Agenda Item #  C-ii______ 
Town of Elon Planning Board 

104 S. Williamson Avenue   PO Box 595 
   Elon, NC  27244    

 
                  

 

1 
 

MEMORANDUM TO THE PLANNING BOARD – January 18, 2022  

 

                                            

Request:   

LDO Text Amendment 

#22-02 Regarding the 

Decriminalization of 

Ordinances 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Pamela DeSoto, 

Assistant Town 

Manager/Planning 

Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Request 

 

Elon’s Land Development Ordinance (LDO) requires updating to bring our 

ordinance into compliance with recently enacted N.C. General Statutes regarding 

the decriminalization of certain ordinances.  

 

Procedural Issues 

 

Section 8.4 of the LDO requires that proposed amendments to the text or maps of 

the ordinance may be initiated by the LDO Administrator, Planning Board, Board 

of Adjustment, or by an interested party. Such amendments require a public hearing 

with public notice as specified by N.C. General Statutes, following a 

recommendation by the Planning Board. The central issue to be considered 

regarding amendments is whether the proposed amendment advances the public 

health, safety or welfare. The statement included with the Planning Board’s 

recommendation and the Board of Aldermen’s final decision on the amendment 

shall describe whether the action is consistent with adopted plans and state whether 

the Board considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest. The 

decision is legislative in nature as opposed to quasi-judicial, and is not subject to 

judicial review.  

Factors to Consider 

 

In September of this year, the N.C. General Assembly passed legislation including broad changes in how local 

ordinances address criminal penalties. More specifically, local ordinances may, in certain instances, be enforced 

criminally if the ordinance specifies such penalty. In other cases, criminal penalties may not be used; these 

instances are described in the statute. While the changes have the greatest impact on our Town Code of 

Ordinances and with Police Department actions, they also apply to land use ordinances. Staff has identified a 

few sections of the LDO that will require revision based on the new requirements and those are addressed in the 

attached draft text amendment. The Town Attorney, Joe Kalo, has reviewed the amendment and provided input. 

The draft amendment includes new language in underlined red text, and language to be removed in red text with 

a “strikethrough”, (or red line) through the text.  

 

In researching the LDO, the following sections mention criminal penalties (action taken is included in italics): 



  

2 
 

 

1. Chapter 6 – Development Review Process, Section 6.11 (Penalties for Transferring Lots in Unapproved 

Subdivisions). This section calls for a misdemeanor finding for subdivision of land in violation of the 

Ordinance, or where land is transferred, sold, or used according to a subdivision plat that has not been 

properly approved and recorded in the register of deeds. Action taken:  Misdemeanor language removed 

and replaced with civil penalty as provided for in Subsection 8.3.3.3.G. 

2. Chapter 8 – Administration and Enforcement, Subsection 8.3.3.3.A (Criminal Penalties under 

Violations). Calls for a misdemeanor charge for violations of any portion of the Ordinance. Action taken:  

Misdemeanor language remains, but a list of ordinances to which the criminal penalty does not apply is 

included, taken directly from the statute. 

3. Chapter 8 – Administration and Enforcement, Subsection 8.3.3.3.E (Execution of Court Decisions under 

Violations). This subsection details the causes for a citing of contempt for defendants who fail or refuse 

to comply with an injunction or with an order of abatement within the time allowed by the court. Action 

taken:  Civil contempt is specified as the appropriate response to such situations. 

 

The Planning Board may make a recommendation regarding this proposed amendment as currently drafted, or 

may make changes to the draft prior to making their recommendation, as long as the proposal is still compliant 

with the statutes.  

 

Plan Consistency 

 

Envision Elon 2040, Elon’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, lists among its recommendations the following: 

 

1. LU-8.12:  Ensure that all LDO sections are up-to-date and compliant with state and federal legislation, 

guidance, and jurisprudence.   

 

The proposal is considered by staff to be consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, in particular, the 

recommendation in the Plan that addresses the need for our ordinance to be compliant with state legislation.  

 

Recommendations and Suggested Motions 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Board consider this application, accept public comment during the scheduled 

meeting, and consider a recommendation on the proposal at their earliest convenience. Staff recommends that 

the Planning Board recommend approval of the amendment. The motions should proceed as follows.  

 

Motion 1: LDO #22-02 (is/is not) consistent with comprehensive plans adopted by the Town of Elon. 

The proposal is considered by staff to be consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use 

Plan. A draft statement for consideration is offered as part of Motion #4. 

  

Motion 2:   LDO #22-02 (is/is not) reasonable and in the public interest. 

   



  

3 
 

Motion 3: The Town of Elon Planning Board recommends (approval/denial) of LDO #22-02 to the Elon 

Board of Aldermen. 

   

Motion 4: In order to fully comply with N.C. General Statutes, please provide the appropriate statement: 

 

 

Statement:  Staff recommendation:  The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, in 

particular, the recommendation in the Plan (LU-8.12) that calls for the ordinance to maintain compliance with 

state legislation.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enclosures: LDO #22-02 Draft Amendment 

   NC League of Municipalities’ Guidance Document 

   G.S. 160A-175 



Ordinance No.  # 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ELON LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

REGARDING THE DECRIMINALIZATION OF ORDINANCES 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELON THE FOLLOWING: 

 
 

Section 1.       Elon Land Development Ordinance Section 6.11 Penalties for Transferring Lots in 
Unapproved Subdivisions is amended as follows: 

 
  A.  Any person who, being the owner or agent of the owner of any land located 

within the jurisdiction of the Town of Elon, thereafter subdivides his land in 
violation of this Ordinance or transfers or sells land by reference to, exhibition 
of, or any other use of a plat showing a subdivision of the land before the plat 
has been properly approved under this ordinance and recorded in the office 
of the register of deeds, will be guilty of a misdemeanor shall be subject to civil 
penalties as provided for in Subsection 8.3.3.3.G – Civil Penalty. The 
description by metes and bounds in the instrument of transfer or other 
document used in the process of selling or transferring land will not exempt 
the transaction from this penalty.  

  
 
Section 2.  Elon Land Development Ordinance Subsection 8.3.3.3 Penalties is amended as 

follows: 
 
 A. Criminal - Any person, firm, or corporation convicted of violating the 

provisions of this ordinance will, upon conviction, be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and will be fined an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars 
($500) and/or imprisoned for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. Each 
day of violation will be considered a separate offense, provided that the 
violation is not corrected within thirty (30) days after notice of violation is 
given.  Not withstanding the foregoing, no criminal penalty may be imposed 
for violations to ordinances of the following types:  (a) any ordinance 
adopted under Article 19 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General 
Statutes, Planning and Regulation of Development, or its successor, Chapter 
160D of the North Carolina General Statutes, except for those ordinances 
related to unsafe buildings; (b) any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 
160A-193.1, Stream-clearing programs; (c) any ordinance adopted pursuant 
to G.S. 160A-194, Regulating and licensing businesses, trades, etc.; (d) any 
ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-199, Regulation of outdoor 
advertising, or its successor, G.S. 160D-912, Outdoor advertising; (e) any 



ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-201, Limitations on regulating 
solar collectors or, its successor, G.S. 160D-914, Solar collectors; (f) any 
ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-202, Limitations on regulating 
cisterns and rain barrels; (g) any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-
304, Regulation of taxis; (h) any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-
306, Building setback lines; (i) any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-
307, Curb cut regulations; and (j) any ordinance regulating trees.  

 
 E.  Execution of Court Decisions – If the defendant fails or refuses to comply 

with an injunction or with an order of abatement within the time allowed by 
the court, he or she may be cited for civil contempt. The LDO Administrator 
may execute the order of abatement and place a lien on the property in the 
nature of a mechanic’s and material man’s lien for the cost of executing the 
order. The defendant may secure cancellation of an order of abatement by 
paying all costs of the proceedings and aby posting a bond for compliance 
with the order. The bond must be given with sureties approved by the Clerk 
of Superior Court in an amount approved by the judge before whom the 
matter was heard and will be conditioned of the defendant’s full compliance 
with the terms of the order of abatement within the time fixed by the judge. 
Cancellation of an order of abatement does not suspend or cancel an 
injunction issued in conjunction with the order.  

 
 
Section 3.       All provisions of any town ordinance or resolution in conflict with this ordinance 

are repealed. 
 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
The foregoing ordinance, having been submitted to a vote, was duly adopted this 

_________ day of ________________________, 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
Dated:  __________________          _______________________________ 
              Emily Sharpe, Mayor 
 
              Attest: 
 
              ________________________________ 
              DiAnne C. Enoch, Town Clerk 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1. 

2. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

mailto:ljohn@nclm.org


 

Page 12 Session Law 2021-138 Senate Bill 300 

(6) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 153A-144, Limitations on regulating 

solar collectors or, its successor, G.S. 160D-914, Solar collectors. 

(7) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 153A-145, Limitations on regulating 

cisterns and rain barrels. 

(8) Any ordinance regulating trees. 

…." 

SECTION 13.(b)  G.S. 160A-175 reads as rewritten: 

"§ 160A-175.  Enforcement of ordinances. 

… 

(b) Unless the Council shall otherwise provide, Except for the types of ordinances listed 

in subsection (b1) of this section, violation of a city ordinance is may be a misdemeanor or 

infraction as provided by G.S. 14-4. G.S. 14-4 only if the city specifies such in the ordinance. An 

ordinance may provide by express statement that the maximum fine, term of imprisonment, or 

infraction penalty to be imposed for a violation is some amount of money or number of days less 

than the maximum imposed by G.S. 14-4. Notwithstanding G.S. 160A-75, no ordinance 

specifying a criminal penalty may be enacted at the meeting in which it is first introduced. 

(b1) No ordinance of the following types may impose a criminal penalty: 

(1) Any ordinance adopted under Article 19 of this Chapter, Planning and 

Regulation of Development, or its successor, Chapter 160D of the General 

Statutes, except for those ordinances related to unsafe buildings. 

(2) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-193.1, Stream-clearing 

programs. 

(3) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-194, Regulating and licensing 

businesses, trades, etc. 

(4) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-199, Regulation of outdoor 

advertising or, its successor, G.S. 160D-912, Outdoor advertising. 

(5) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-201, Limitations on regulating 

solar collectors or, its successor, G.S. 160D-914, Solar collectors. 

(6) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-202, Limitations on regulating 

cisterns and rain barrels. 

(7) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-304, Regulation of taxis. 

(8) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-306, Building setback lines. 

(9) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. 160A-307, Curb cut regulations. 

(10) Any ordinance regulating trees. 

…." 

SECTION 13.(c)  G.S. 14-4 reads as rewritten: 

"§ 14-4.  Violation of local ordinances misdemeanor. 

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b), (b) or (c) of this section, if any person shall 

violate an ordinance of a county, city, town, or metropolitan sewerage district created under 

Article 5 of Chapter 162A, he shall be guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor and shall be fined not 

more than five hundred dollars ($500.00). No fine shall exceed fifty dollars ($50.00) unless the 

ordinance expressly states that the maximum fine is greater than fifty dollars ($50.00). 

(b) If any person shall violate an ordinance of a county, city, or town regulating the 

operation or parking of vehicles, he shall be responsible for an infraction and shall be required to 

pay a penalty of not more than fifty dollars ($50.00). 

(c) A person may not be found responsible or guilty of a local ordinance violation 

punishable pursuant to subsection (a) of this section if, when tried for that violation, the person 

produces proof of compliance with the local ordinance through any of the following: 

(1) No new alleged violations of the local ordinance within 30 days from the date 

of the initial alleged violation. 

pgraham
Highlight



Town of Elon
Board of Aldermen

Regular Meeting

AGENDA ITEMS December 14, 2021
Municipal Building, 6:00 PM

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. MOTION TO APPROVE BY REFERENCE THE ITEMS LISTED WITHIN THE
CONSENT AGENDA

A. Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes - Town Clerk
November 1 2021 Agenda Session Minutes
November 9, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

B. Certify the Abstract of Votes - Town Clerk

C. 2022 Board of Aldermen Meeting Schedule - Town Clerk

D. 2021 Municipal Retention Schedules - Town Clerk

E. Board Appointments - Mayor

V. OATH - Mark Greene

A. Mayor Pro Tem Oath - Mayor

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT(S)

The public may speak on any non-agenda item up to three minutes.
An agenda item will only be discussed at its appropriate time.
Public Hearing items can only be discussed during the public hearing.
Be sure to sign in, stand, and state your name and address for the Minutes. 

VII. OLD BUSINESS

A. ARP Budget Account - Town Manager

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Major Development Plan for a Conversion of Parking to Pedestrian Walkway Submitted by
Elon University - Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director

B. Consideration of COVID Sick Leave - Town Manager

IX. REPORTS

A. Town Manager

B. Mayor and Board of Aldermen

X. ADJOURNMENT

APPROVED
APPROVED



 

2022 Board of Aldermen Appointments 
 

  
Monti Allison 

• Burlington-Graham Metropolitan Planning Organization Transportation Advisory Committee 
(TAC) Representative 

• Land Management Ordinance (LMO) Advisory Committee 
• Planning Board – January 18, 2022 and July 19, 2022 

 
Stephanie Bourland 

• Committee for Equality (to be created) 
• Neighborhood Coalition 
• Arts Advisory Board 
• Planning Board – February 15, 2022 and August 16, 2022 

 
Mark Greene 

• Mayor Pro Tem 
• Budget Committee 
• Personnel Committee 
• Downtown Advisory Board 
• Planning Board – March 15, 2022 and September 20, 2022 

 
Randy Orwig 

• Treasurer 
• Sustainability (to be created) 
• Personnel Committee 
• Planning Board – April 19, 2022 and October 18, 2022 

 
Quinn Ray 

• Treasurer (Alternate) 
• Budget Committee 
• Arts Advisory Board 
• Planning Board – May 17, 2022 and November 15, 2022 

 
Emily Sharpe 

• Board Retreat 
o +Richard Roedner 

• City/County Association Convener 
o +Dianne Enoch 

• Alamance Chamber Economic Development Committee 
o +Kathleen Patterson 

• Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
o +Richard Roedner 

• Neighborhood Coalition 
o +Pam DeSoto 

• Piedmont Triad Regional Council Board of Delegates 
• Planning Board – December 21, 2021; June 21, 2022 and December 20, 2022 

Appointments on Hold 
• Appearance 

Commission 
• Recreation & Parks 

Commission 
• Line of Agreement 

Attachment 1



Town of Elon
Board of Aldermen

Regular Meeting

AGENDA ITEMS January 11, 2022
Municipal Building, 6:00 PM

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. MOTION TO APPROVE BY REFERENCE THE ITEMS LISTED WITHIN THE
CONSENT AGENDA

A. Board of Aldermen Meeting Minutes - Town Clerk
December 6, 2021 Agenda Session Minutes
December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

 

III. PRESENTATION

A. Discussion of Finance/HR Director position - Town Manager

B. Elon Public Facing Development Map - Planner

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT(S)

The public may speak on any non-agenda item up to three minutes.
An agenda item will only be discussed at its appropriate time.
Public Hearing items can only be discussed during the public hearing.
Be sure to sign in, stand, and state your name and address for the Minutes. 

V. NEW BUSINESS

A. Discussion of dates and format for Annual Retreat - Mayor

VI. REPORTS

A. Town Manager

B. Mayor and Board of Aldermen

VII. ADJOURNMENT




